ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON O L AND GAS
March 13, 2003
3:20 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Vic Kohring, Chair
Representati ve Hugh Fate
Representative Jim Holm
Representative Lesil MQiire
Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative Beth Kerttul a

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Representative Jim Hol m
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 12
Expressing support for federal energy initiatives affecting
Al aska that would reduce the nation's continuing dependence on
inported foreign oil as its principal energy source.
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HIR 12

SHORT TI TLE: SUPPORTI NG FEDERAL ENERGY | NI TI ATI VES
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) CRAWFORD

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

03/ 05/ 03 0395 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 05/ 03 0395 (H &G RES

03/ 05/ 03 0395 (H REFERRED TO O L & GAS

03/13/03 (H &G AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE O&G COW TTEE -1- March 13, 2003



JAY HARDENBROCK, St af f

to Representative Harry Crawford

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions pertaining to HIR 12.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-15, SIDE A

Number 0001

CHAIR VIC KOHRI NG cal l ed the House Special Conmmttee on Ol and
Gas neeting to order at 3:20 p.m Represent ati ves Kohri ng,
Chenault, MQ@uire, and Crawford were present at the call to
order. Represent ati ves Rokeberg, Fate, and Kerttula arrived as
the neeting was in progress. Al so present was Representative
Hol m

HIR 12- SUPPORTI NG FEDERAL ENERGY | NI TI ATl VES

CHAIR KOHRI NG announced that the commttee would hear HOUSE
JO NT RESOLUTION NO 12, Expressing support for federal energy
initiatives affecting Al aska that would reduce the nation's
continuing dependence on inported foreign oil as its principal
energy source.

Nunber 0065

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD, sponsor, characterized HIR 12 as an
"energy independence resolution.”™ He explained his belief that
because 55 percent of oil in the US. cones from outside of

North Anmerica, it has skewed a nunber of things including
foreign policy and pricing. He said he'd like a 10-year plan -
much |i ke President John F. Kennedy's 10-year plan to put a nman
on the nmon - to get America to the point of energy
i ndependence, and said he believes Al aska hol ds the key.

Number 0185

CHAIR KOHRI NG commended this as a good thing. Referring to
Representative Crawford's point that Alaska is key as far as
ener gy-i ndependence potential in the US., he said this is with
regard to not only oil and gas, but also geothermal [energy] and
coal . He noted that research provided by Representative
Crawford nentions 5.5 trillion tons of coal.

HOUSE O&G COW TTEE - 2- March 13, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD clarified that the approximately 5

trillion tons is projected, but provided the figure of 170
billion tons of coal in proven reserves.
Nunmber 0334

CHAIR KOHRI NG indicated the resolution is to be sent to Gale
Norton, Secretary of the Interior, and to the President [in
addition to several others]. He asked Representative Crawford,
if it were to be pronoted aggressively, what he would suggest
| egi slatively such as incentives to encourage devel opnent of
these different areas of potential [energy resources].

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD answered that before the Al aska Science
and Technol ogy Foundation (ASTF) was scheduled for dem se, he'd
had other legislation for introduction. Indicating the desire
to wait to see what happens to ASTF, he said he'd talked to its
new director about public and private partnerships and how to
pronote this.

Number 0398

REPRESENTATI VE MGUI RE encouraged introduction of the other
| egi sl ati on. She suggested the bill should be part of the
public policy discussion with respect to renoving [ASTF s]
endowrent of close to a billion dollars.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD reported that the new director [of ASTF]
had asked that the l|egislation be held back for a little tine.
He reiterated his belief that Al aska holds the key to changing
Anerica' s energy picture.

The conmittee took an at-ease from3:25 p.m to 3:27 p.m
Number 0529

CHAIR KOHRING lauded the concept of pronoting energy
[ i ndependence] and added his belief that one reason the U S. is
i nvolved so heavily in the Mddle East is because of not wanting
to disrupt the flow of oil. In addition, he said, devel oping
resources within the U S. could help grow the econony.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD suggested it would benefit all of North
Anerica because the U S. is part of the North Anerican Free
Trade Agreenent (NAFTA) and thus is in partnership with Canada
and Mexi co.

HOUSE O&G COW TTEE - 3- March 13, 2003



CHAI R KOHRI NG agr eed.
Nunber 0624

CHAI R KOHRI NG suggested this resolution mrrors what President
Bush announced two years ago with regard to greater energy
i ndependence and |ooking at developing coal, oil, gas, and
alternative sources. He asked whether that is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said it is, but pointed out that
hydrogen is a new field. He likened it to a big battery, a way
to store alternative energy and ship it worldw de. He opi ned
that Al aska has the best potential of anywhere in the world to
produce hydrogen because of all the alternative energy sources
avail able, including wind, water, tidal power, and geothernmal
power; furthernore, those sources are at [tidewater] and thus
shi ppi ng hydrogen in tankers all around the world can be done
cheaply and safely. He pointed out that a wecked tanker filled
wi th hydrogen woul dn't cause a huge environnental disaster |ike
a tanker full of oil would.

Number 0732

CHAI R KOHRI NG asked whet her hydrogen is shipped currently or is
bei ng devel oped at all in the world.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD replied that it's being done to a snal
extent today, and is used in nmany products. He enphasi zed his
belief that hydrogen is the fuel of the future, but pointed out
that the problem until now has been producing it cheaply. He
said producing hydrogen by wusing fossil fuels such as natura
gas or oil - because of insufficient return in BTUs [British
thermal units] - isn't that efficient, although coal could be
used efficiently. Wnd, water, and geothermal power, however,
can be used where the energy is produced, such as at Akutan on
the Aleutian Peninsula, where there are huge geothernma
potentials; at Knik Arm or Turnagain Arm where there is good
tidal power; at Fire Island outside of Anchorage, where there is
a desire to put 70 negawatts of wi nd power; or at Turnagain Arm
where there is a desire to put 10 to 20 negawatts of w nd power
on Bird Ridge, to his belief.

Nunmber 0885

CHAI R KOHRI NG expressed interest in [having the commttee] work
on legislation to encourage developnent |ike that through tax

HOUSE O&G COW TTEE -4- March 13, 2003



i ncentives or streamlined regulation and permtting, for
i nst ance.

REPRESENTATI VE  CRAWFORD  renar ked t hat certainly Chugach
[El ectric Association, Inc.] could use help with its wind farm
at Fire Island, which is in its infancy. Suggesting the
| egi slature could help foster this, he noted that just putting
in 70 megawatts of power at Fire Island wouldn't be that
efficient because there would be high w nds sonetines, but no
wi nd sonetinmes at peak hours when it's needed. Excess energy
turned into hydrogen could be stored, however, and thus would be
used nost efficiently.

The commttee took an at-ease at 3:31 p.m that lasted only a
f ew seconds.

Number 0987

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD addressed his handout, "North Anmerican
Ener gy | ndependence: Al aska's Resources and How They Can Free
Anmerica From Dependence on Foreign GI." Turning to the first
page, "Alaska's Role in Energy Independence,” he said Al aska has
the potential to be the backbone of an energy-independence plan
for the continent. Referring to a depiction of a battery
superinposed on Al aska, he explained that it shows Alaska as a
bi g storage house for Anerica's energy.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD referred to the next page, "National
Security,"” and said currently the US. inports nore than 55
percent of its oil from foreign sources, with alnost 45 percent
comng fromthe Mddle East. This dependence on foreign oil has
put US mlitary personnel in harms way, and has subjected the
U S nmarket to large price fluctuations in oil and natural gas;
essentially, the U S. purchases hydrocarbons from the sane
peopl e who threaten the lives of U S. citizens.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD addressed the next tw pages, "Ql and
Gas Devel opnent” and "Coal." He said that NPR-A [National
Petrol eum Reserve-Al aska] and ANWR [Arctic National WIldlife
Ref uge] have the potential to produce over 20 billion barrels of
oil collectively; that a proven 30 trillion cubic feet of
natural gas is stranded on the North Slope; and that in coal bed
nmet hane al one, Al aska has an estimated 1,000 trillion cubic feet
of natural gas. Noting that coal is just one of Al aska' s many
underutilized resources, he reported that Alaska has proven
reserves of 170 billion tons of coal, wth an estimted 5.5
trillion tons - half of the U S. reserves - all in one state.

HOUSE O&G COW TTEE - 5- March 13, 2003



Nunmber 1146

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD turned to the next two pages, both

| abel ed "Hydrogen." He explained that hydrogen is believed to
be the fuel of the future for the autonobile; in many areas of
the world, that could be true for power plants as well. It can

be used to power fuel cells that produce electricity, with the
only byproduct being water; it also can be used to make clean
di esel through the gas-to-liquids (GIL) process. Essentially,
hydrogen is a neans to deliver energy from one point on the
earth to another w thout constructing power |ines or pipelines.
Thus hydrogen is the way that Alaska can deliver its energy
t hroughout North Ameri ca.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD addressed the next-to-last page, "The
University of Al aska."” He told mnmenbers that wusing the
incredible research facilities and human resources at the
University of Alaska and Al aska's vast energy resources, North
Anmerican energy independence could becone a reality. Turning to
the final page, which discussed HIR 12 specifically, he
concluded by noting that it [urges Congress, the President, and
menbers of his cabinet] to do the following: 1) open nore areas
in North Anerica for oil and gas exploration and devel opnent; 2)
provi de reasonable incentives for an Alaska natural gas
pi peline; 3) develop reasonable energy-efficiency standards for
the U S.; and 4) develop a 10-year plan for North American
ener gy i ndependence.

Number 1261

CHAI R KOHRI NG asked how hydrogen would be delivered from one
poi nt to anot her.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD replied that hydrogen can be safely
transported by bonding the nolecules with zeolite, a mneral
found in abundance in Al aska. He pointed out that an acetyl ene
cani ster that |acks a carbon "honeyconb” inside would be a bonb,
but the carbon honeyconb causes the acetylene to bond with the

carbon and nmakes it safe to transport. Simlarly, hydrogen can
be transported safely in a tanker as long as the zeolite is
t here. He suggested this would provide another industry for

Al aska in addition to mning the zeolite.

Nunmber 1368

HOUSE O&G COW TTEE - 6- March 13, 2003



CHAI R KOHRI NG asked about the downside with regard to safety or
t he environnent.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD replied that he'd heard of only two
negati ve aspects. First, hydrogen requires care - though the
sane is true of gasoline or natural gas. Second, it hasn't been
used as a fuel thus far because the [nobnetary] return isn't
sufficient if it requires natural gas to produce. However,
geot hermal power, wnd, water, or other renewable resources
don't have a "nmeter" and thus are the way to produce hydrogen
cheaply.

Number 1434

REPRESENTATI VE FATE conplinented Representative Crawford on
HIR 12, which he said he could support if there were

nodi fications. He agreed that hydrogen will beconme the fuel of
the future, especially for autonobiles and perhaps even trains,
but suggested it will be awhile because of the cost, even though

wi nd or other cheap power sources may hel p produce it.
Nunber 1547
REPRESENTATI VE FATE offered specific coments on HIR 12.

Referring to the first "WHEREAS' clause [page 1, lines 4-6], he
explained that he wouldn't want the state to send a resolution

that directs the US. governnent to "interfere wth their
efforts” with regard to human rights. He al so suggested that
the second ["WHEREAS" clause, page 1, lines 7-8, inplies] that
foreign oil has put the arned services in harns way.

Di sagreeing with that concept, he added that if it is true, it
certainly isn't the only reason.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE called attention to [page 1, lines 15-16],
which nentions potential for [oil and] gas devel opnent in the
coastal plain of ANAR and NPR-A He said there is a high
potential for gas in NPRA; for oil, however, it has yet to be
seen through the necessary seism c worKk.

Nunber 1680

REPRESENTATI VE FATE referred to [page 2, lines 1-3]. He
remarked that whereas sone people say [the anmount of stranded
gas on the North Slope] is 30 trillion cubic feet [as cited in
HIR 12], sone say 33 trillion or 35 trillion; he suggested it
isn't worth quibbling about, however. He also suggested

HOUSE O&G COW TTEE -7- March 13, 2003



deleting "Northern Canada" [on |line 3]; he questioned the nerit
of including Canada, since its gas conpetes with Al aska's.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE reiterated that although he absolutely
believes in the future of hydrogen power, the [costs versus
benefits] don't measure out yet. He remarked that steam can be
generated by using natural gas, which the state has plenty of;
however, whether it could be done efficiently - in conparison
with what the gas itself could be sold for - needs to be | ooked
at . Referring to page 2, line 18, which tal ks about devel oping
[resources] on the North Anerican continent, he indicated this
goes back to his concern about including Canada.

Number 1839

REPRESENTATI VE FATE nentioned an ongoing effort in federal
| egislation [that hadn't yet passed] with respect to producing
ener gy standards.

REPRESENTATI VE = CRAWFORD responded, "That's why we said
'reasonabl e' . "

REPRESENTATI VE FATE al so suggested striking "10-year" where it
says "10-year plan". He explained, "Let the people who cone up
with an energy plan determ ne that. And 10 years may fall way
short. It takes 10 years, for exanple, to probably get the gas
pi peline on line here. And they understand that; they' ve been
working on this for several vyears." Reiterating his absolute
support for HIR 12 if the foregoing changes are made, he again
commended t he sponsor.

CHAIR KOHRING also commended Representative Crawford. He
proposed that Representatives Fate and Crawford work together to
i nprove the bill

Nunmber 1968

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD agreed to work with nenbers in order to
get acceptable wording. Responding to Representative Fate's
suggestions, he said one nmain reason for HIJR 12 was to try to
nove the federal governnment in this direction as quickly as
possible; the 10 vyears is included to give the federa
governnment a "boost." He acknow edged that if it were binding
law, it would be done differently. As for putting troops in
harms way, he offered his belief that "this has made us expend
a lot of our national energy on protecting the oil routes in the

HOUSE O&G COW TTEE - 8- March 13, 2003



M ddl e East that we mght not be [protecting] if we weren't so
dependent on foreign oil."

Nunber 2095

REPRESENTATI VE =~ CRAWFORD, in response to questions from
Represent ati ve Rokeberg, explained that electricity is needed to
[ produce hydrogen from water]. Al aska has geot hermal resources
for which there is no market. He noted that New Zeal and obt ai ns
its electricity from geothermal power, for exanple. Al t hough

there is no market for [something simlar] on the island of
Akut an, those geothermal resources can be used to produce
hydrogen from seawater; the hydrogen then can be exported around
the world. Simlarly, the 70 megawatts of w nd power on Fire
Island or tidal power in Knik Armor Turnagain Arm for exanple,
could be used to produce hydrogen, which is a way to store the
excess energy.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD reported that ASTF' s new director said
hydrogen can be produced using coal if excess electricity is
produced beyond that required for other needs. Furt her nor e,
this can be done in areas of Al aska where there are [few] people
and no need today for a power plant otherw se. Representati ve
Crawford noted that General Mdtors has a hydrogen-run car and
that Honda has had one ready for production for about a year.
He offered his belief that this is close to fruition, rather
t han bei ng 20 years away.

Nunber 2347

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he shared Representative Fate's
concerns about the technology for hydrogen conversion and costs;
he also expressed concern about creating a distribution system
for the retail marketing of hydrogen. He inquired about the BTU
val ue of hydrogen.

Nunber 2401

JAY HARDENBROCK, Staff to Representative Harry Crawford, Al aska
State Legislature, said it depends on how it is used. When
hydrogen is used for fuel cells, it basically becones a battery
and the BTU level is simlar to natural gas. Essentially, he

said, it is natural gas that also can be used in fuel cells.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG observed that hydroel ectric power hadn't
been nentioned. He then asked whet her generating hydrogen goes

HOUSE O&G COW TTEE - 9- March 13, 2003



against the short-terminterests of Al askans to produce oil and
gas [because of royalties].

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD answered that if the 55 percent of oil
that cones from foreign countries were cut off, there would be a
shortage of energy in the United States; he suggested this would
make hydrogen an essential part of the country's energy supply.
He noted that there is a fuel cell operating at the airport post
office [in Anchorage] that is a clean source of electricity
there; he suggested this could be done all over Al aska wthout
the need for diesel generators.

Nunber 2573

REPRESENTATI VE FATE enphasized the high ~cost of current
hydr ogen-run aut onobi | es. He then remarked that the Stone Age
didn't end because of lack of stone; neither wll the
hydr ocarbon age end because of |ack of hydrocarbons. However
as long as cheap, efficient hydrocarbons can be used - which is
the case for gas - it wll remain. He reiterated his belief
that the transition from gas technology in the United States to
hydrogen will occur later, rather than sooner, because there is

so nmuch gas avail able at such a cheap price.
Nunber 2727

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD responded that the point of the
resolution is to stop using inported hydrocarbons from the
M ddle East and elsewhere, and instead to wuse [Al aska's]
resources - whatever are the nost efficient at the tine. Saying
that gas is, by far, the best fuel available, he related his
belief that [dependence on fuels from elsewhere] skews the
country's foreign policy, currency, and business clinmate. He
enphasi zed the desire to use North Anmerican sources of fuel as
quickly as possible, thereby getting away from using foreign
fuel and enerqgy.

REPRESENTATI VE FATE said he concurred with that effort, but
noted that Representative Crawford had highlighted geothernal
[and other renewable sources of energy]. He reiterated that
those won't [be used extensively] for a long tine because of the
| arge quantities of natural gas avail abl e.

Number 2861

MR. HARDENBROOK poi nted out that a cost benefit of hydrogen is
that it's already at tidewater, in contrast to natural gas on

HOUSE O&G COW TTEE -10- March 13, 2003



the North Slope. Al that is necessary is a power plant and an
el ectrolysis plant; then hydrogen can be shipped using a zeolite
tanker directly to the Wst Coast. He suggested there would be
a cost savings, therefore, since it can be used as a natural
gas. That is why it is highlighted in the resolution, he said,
rather than to displace other [North Anerican] hydrocarbons.

CHAIR KOHRING noted that the enphasis of the bill is to
encourage energy [independence], but said Representative Fate's
comments are well taken. Aski ng that Representatives Crawford

and Fate work on it, he offered to facilitate the work as well.
[HIR 12 was hel d over. ]

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Committee on QI and Gas neeting was adjourned at
4:09 p. m

HOUSE O&G COW TTEE -11- March 13, 2003



